Public Document Pack

West
Northamptonshire
Council

Co-ordinating Overview and Scrutiny
Group

A meeting of the Co-ordinating Overview and Scrutiny Group will be held
as a Virtual meeting via ZOOM - Please click here to view this meeting
online, https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCujrRO-y6RzkN6zPQ-xNAtA
on Monday 6 September 2021 at 6.00 pm

Agenda

1. Apologies for Absence and Notification of Substitute Members

2. Declarations of Interest

Members are asked to declare any interest and the nature of that interest which they
may have in any of the items under consideration at this meeting.

3. Minutes (Pages 5 - 8)
To confirm the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 21 July 2021.

4, Announcements from the Chair
To receive any communications from the Chair.

5. Work Programming Consultation Process (Pages 9 - 18)

The Co-ordinating Scrutiny Group to finalise Work Programming Consultation Process
for the three Scrutiny Committees

6. Urgent Business

The Chair to advise whether they have agreed to any items of urgent business being
admitted to the agenda.

Page 1

West Northamptonshire Council
www.westnorthants.gov.uk




7. Exclusion of Press and Public

In respect of the following items the Chair may move the resolution set out below, on
the grounds that if the public were present it would be likely that exempt information
(information regarded as private for the purposes of the Local Government Act 1972)
would be disclosed to them: The Committee is requested to resolve: “That under
Section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the
meeting for the following item(s) of business on the grounds that if the public were
present it would be likely that exempt information under Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the
Act of the descriptions against each item would be disclosed to them”

Catherine Whitehead
Proper Officer
26 August 2021

Co-ordinating Overview and Scrutiny Group Members:

Councillor Dermot Bambridge Councillor Karen Cooper
Councillor Jo Gilford Councillor Rosie Herring
Councillor Sam Rumens Councillor Danielle Stone

Page 2




Information about this Agenda

Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence and the appointment of substitute Members should be notified to
democraticservices@westnorthants.gov.uk prior to the start of the meeting.

Declarations of Interest
Members are asked to declare interests at item 2 on the agenda or if arriving after the start
of the meeting, at the start of the relevant agenda item

Local Government and Finance Act 1992 - Budget Setting, Contracts &
Supplementary Estimates

Members are reminded that any member who is two months in arrears with Council Tax
must declare that fact and may speak but not vote on any decision which involves budget
setting, extending or agreeing contracts or incurring expenditure not provided for in the
agreed budget for a given year and could affect calculations on the level of Council Tax.

Access to Meetings

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of these papers or
special access facilities) please contact the officer named below, giving as much notice as
possible before the meeting.

Mobile Phones
Please ensure that any device is switched to silent operation or switched off.

Queries Regarding this Agenda
If you have any queries about this agenda please contact Tracy Tiff, Deputy Democratic
Services Manager via the following:

Tel: 01604 837408
Email: democraticservices@westnorthants.gov.uk

Or by writing to:

West Northamptonshire Council
One Angel Square

Angel Street

Northampton

NN1 1ED

Page 3


mailto:democraticservices@westnorthants.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank



10.

11.

12.

13.

Agenda Item 3

West
Northamptonshire
Council

Co-ordinating Overview and Scrutiny Group
Minutes of a meeting of the Co-ordinating Overview and Scrutiny Group held at
Council Chamber, Lodge Road, Daventry, NN11 4FP on Wednesday 21 July 2021 at
6.00 pm.
Present Councillor Dermot Bambridge
Councillor Rosie Herring
Councillor Danielle Stone

Apologies Councillor Karen Cooper

for Councillor Jo Gilford
Absence: Councillor Sam Rumens
Officers Diana Davies, Democratic Services Officer

James Edmunds, Democratic Services Assistant Manager
Kathryn Holton, Committee Officer
Tracy Tiff, Deputy Democratic Services Manager
Catherine Whitehead, Director of Legal and Democratic (Monitoring
Officer)
Appointment of Chair
The Deputy Democratic Services Manager advised that in the absence of Clir Gilford,
the appointed Chair for the meeting, an alternative Chair needed to be agreed.
Following the list agreed at the previous meeting, Clir Cooper would be next to take
the chair but since she had also sent apologies ClIr Herring was next on the list. It
was proposed by Clir Stone and seconded by Clir Bambridge that ClIr Herring be
appointed Chair for the meeting.
Apologies
Apologies were received from Cllrs Cooper, Gilford and Rumens.
Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.
Minutes

The minutes of the meeting held on 17 June 2021 were agreed as an accurate
record.

Chair's Announcements

There were no announcements from the Chair.

Page 5



14.

Co-ordinating Overview and Scrutiny Group - 21 July 2021

Work Programmes 2021/2022 for the three Scrutiny Committees: Corporate,
People and Place

The Chair asked whether dates had been set for the Work Programme planning
workshops since this would affect the duration of the short-term work programmes for
the three Committees. The Deputy Democratic Services Manager advised that the
dates needed to be agreed by the three Overview and Scrutiny Committees together
with other relevant parties.

In order to obtain suggestions of Scrutiny topics from the public it was agreed that a
single survey should be used to gather ideas for all three Overview and Scrutiny
Committees. Consideration needed to be given to methods of distributing the survey
to ensure they did not favour one area over another. It was noted from previous
experience in Northampton that survey results gave a good indication of the issues
residents were concerned about and working with the public helped them to
understand the process. It was agreed that the survey should be sent out as soon as
possible (September) to allow adequate time for response.

Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The Chair of the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee outlined the key issues
and topics to inform the short-term work programme for 2021/22, together with the
longer term reviews and topics to be considered at the work programming event in
autumn 2021 (Appendix A to the report).

ClIr Stone noted that the Social Values Act had a requirement for all LA contracts to
be able to demonstrate added social value, for which scrutiny would be helpful. The
University’s changemaker hub was seeking to promote a social values pledge from
all local businesses within an ethical framework. WNC should seek to be part of this.

Briefings were planned for members on topics such as contract management and
procurement, to enable effective scrutiny.

ClIr Herring noted that there was an item on the WNC Contracts Register of £8m to
Shoosmiths for conveyancing and asked for more information. The Monitoring
Officer advised that this related to legal services in respect of the buy-back of Council
properties for Northampton Partnership Homes (NPH) and agreed to look at the costs
involved. The Monitoring Officer also outlined the current legal arrangements for
WNC and advised that these were in the process of being rationalised.

It was noted that WNC had come into being partly in response to financial problems
and residents needed to be clear about how money was spent.

Car parking charges were identified as a possible cross-cutting topic, since all
Committees would be affected. Regeneration of the town centre was important and a
balance needed to be struck between issues such as parking income, footfall and air
quality.

Place Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The Chair of the Place Overview and Scrutiny Committee outlined the key issues and
topics to inform the short-term work programme for 2021/22, together with the longer

Page 6



Co-ordinating Overview and Scrutiny Group - 21 July 2021

term reviews and topics to be considered at the work programming event in autumn
2021 (Appendix B to the report).

Potential cross-cutting issues were detailed in Appendix B, but also included
Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO) — which had been raised at Council and
potentially came within the remit of both Place and People Committees.

The Deputy Democratic Services Manager advised that cross-cutting issues were
well-suited to a task and finish group. The group could contain members from all
committees, but would need to report back to a single committee to be decided by
the Co-ordinating Overview and Scrutiny Group.

People Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The Chair of the People Overview and Scrutiny Committee outlined the key issues
and topics to inform the short-term work programme for 2021/22, together with the
longer term reviews and topics to be considered at the work programming event in
autumn 2021 (Appendix C to the report).

In addition it was noted that transitions from Children’s Services to Adults had not
been handled well in the past and this could be a potential topic for scrutiny.

Clir Stone advised that she had extensive experience in the area of youth provision
and requested to be called as a witness if the topic was to be scrutinised.

It was noted that Work Programmes of all three Committees needed to be carefully
planned to ensure the workload was spread evenly throughout the year.

The Chair expressed concern that the approach taken by WNC to Overview and
Scrutiny modelled that of the previous Northampton Borough Council (NBC), which
could result in it becoming Northampton-centric. The Monitoring Officer pointed out
that NBC’s model had been complimented by the Centre for Public Scrutiny and that
although the process was not dictated in the Constitution, the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee for the West Northamptonshire Shadow Authority (comprising members
from all areas) had commended this approach and the Corporate Governance Task
and Finish Group had also provided Member input into the suggested process.

It was agreed that dates for Work Programming events and survey details would be
discussed remotely before the next meeting, with the chairs of the three Overview
and Scrutiny Committees having input on what was sent out in their names for the
public consultation and agreeing the circulation list so that areas for Daventry and
South Northants could be included.

The meeting closed at 7.50 pm

Chair:

Date:

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 5

West I7tem no:
Northamptonshire
Council

WEST NORTHAMPTONSHIRE COUNCIL

COORDINATING OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY GROUP

6 SEPTEMBER 2021
Report Title Work Programming Consultation Process
Report Author Tracy Tiff, Deputy Democratic Services Manager,

tracy.tiff@westnorthants.gov.uk 01604 837408

Contributors/Checkers/Approvers
MO Catherine Whitehead
25 August 2021
$151 Martin Henry 23 August 2021

List of Appendices

Appendix A — Draft Work Programming Consultation documents

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 The remit of the Coordinating Overview and Scrutiny Group (the Group) includes the
responsibility for approving the Work Programmes for the three Scrutiny Committees —
Corporate, Place and People.

1.2 The relevant Overview and Scrutiny Committee shall consider any matter referred to it by the
Leader/Cabinet in accordance with those procedures and, having considered the matter, shall
report to the Leader/Cabinet with comments and/or proposals. In the case of cross-cutting matters,
the Co-ordinating Overview and Scrutiny Group may recommend a particular Overview and Scrutiny
Committee considers such matters.

1.3 At its meeting on 21 July 2021, the Group considered the short-term work programmes work

for the three Scrutiny Committees and it was requested that the Group approves the
consultation process for work programming.

Page 9


mailto:tracy.tiff@westnorthants.gov.uk

2. Executive Summary

2.1 Effective work programming establishes directed scrutiny of issues of local importance and
ensures that Scrutiny adds value and makes a difference.

2.2 The Centre for Governance and Scrutiny (CfGS) states that an effective work programme is -
central to effective scrutiny. Therefore, a good Scrutiny Work Programme ensures that the
Committees are focussing on priority issues, making best use of both time and resources. The
designing of a Work Programme for Scrutiny can promote public participation, transparency
and demonstrate good governance.

2.3 Work Programming is the planning stage. Potential topics for scrutiny are identified for the
year. These will be investigated either at a Committee meeting or through time limited Task
and Finish Groups. It is typical for a long list to be drawn up initially that is reduced to a short
list before a final work programme is approved.

2.4 Atits meeting on 17 June 2021 the Group agreed that each Scrutiny Committee would hold an
individual Work Programming event to put together its Work Programme for 2021/2022. The

Work Programmes will then be presented to the Group for consideration and approval.

3. Recommendations

3.1 It is recommended that:

3.1.1 The Coordinating Overview and Scrutiny Group considers, for comment and approval, the draft
consultation process for the Overview and Scrutiny work programming process.

3.2  Reason for Recommendations

3.2.1 One of Overview and Scrutiny’s key roles is to undertake focussed work programming in order
that it is ensured that Scrutiny contributes actively to the Council’s objectives.

3.2.2 Each of the three Scrutiny Committees should have a Work Programme for the year, every
year. Each Scrutiny Committee has a short term Work Programme in place, ahead of the work

programme event that will agree a longer term work programme.

3.2.3 The Overview and Scrutiny Coordinating Group is asked to confirm the consultation process
that would be used for receiving suggestions for scrutiny reviews and activity.

4 Report Background

4.1 Work Programming Event

4.1.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Coordinating Group, at its meeting on 17 June 2021 considered
various options for potential work programming for Overview and Scrutiny. The Group agreed
that each Scrutiny Committee should hold individual work programming events, rather than

Page 10



one single work programming event. Each Scrutiny Committee will confirm the date for its
Work Programme event which is likely to be held during October 2021.

4.2 Draft Work Programming Event — Consultation process

4.2.1 The Centre for Public Scrutiny and Governance advocates that scrutiny committees should
agree a work programme at the start of each Municipal year; in order that issues can be
scheduled for consideration and reports produced in a timely manner.

4.2.2 Each Scrutiny Committee — Corporate, Place and People has set a short-term work programme
for 2021/22 that has been approved by the Coordinating Overview and Scrutiny Group.

4.2.3 The Council’s constitution states that the Overview and Scrutiny Committees will consult with
other parts of the Council as appropriate, including the Cabinet, on the preparation of any work
programme.

4.2.4 ltis proposed that prior to the work programming events, the Chairs of the Scrutiny
Committees could make contact with various organisations and groups inviting them to make
suggestions of what Overview and Scrutiny could investigate over the next 12 months. An
online survey could also be produced, using Survey Monkey and shared by the Communications
Team through the Council’s various social media sites and press releases. This would
encourage public participation in the Overview and Scrutiny work programming process. This
process has been used by a previous Local Authority, within the West Northants area, and it did
gain public interest and participation. Any suggestions received could then be summarised in a
table format for consideration at each Work Programming event.

Attached at Appendix A for the Group’s consideration and comment is:

e Proposed list of groups and organisations to contact for suggestions for future scrutiny
review, work and activity

e Draft email

e Draft questionnaire question

4.2.5 Cabinet Members could be invited to attend the beginning of the events and each Cabinet
Member would speak of their priorities for the year. From this, ideas for pre-decision
scrutiny could be proposed for inclusion within the work programmes of each Scrutiny
Committee. Pre-decision is an important part of the Scrutiny function as it investigates a
planned decision shortly before it is to be made by Cabinet; or it can carry out pre-decision
scrutiny of one of the planned decisions several months before it is considered by Cabinet.
Pre-decision scrutiny is recognised as an effective means of scrutiny. Non-executives would
have the opportunity to ask questions of the Cabinet Members at the event. Following
Cabinet’s presentations, they would leave the event, taking no part in the further
discussions being held by non-Executives regarding the drawing together of potential work
programmes.

Page 11



4.2.6 Executive Directors and Assistant Directors could be invited to attend the events and could
offer advice on suggestions for potential scrutiny review, for example, whether the issue was
already being looked at within the service area, such information is important as to avoid
duplication.

4.2.7 The Scrutiny Committees could invite other non-Executives, not members of the Scrutiny
Committees to also attend the events and provide their input and suggestions for future

scrutiny work.

5 Issues and Choices

5.1 The Overview and Scrutiny Coordinating Group, at its meeting on 17 June 2021, agreed the Work
Programming process for each Scrutiny Committee to follow, as detailed in section 4 of this
report. This report is asking the Group to confirm the consultation process for the Work
programming process. Draft consultation documents are attached at Appendix A for the
Group’s consideration.

5.2 The Overview and Scrutiny Coordinating Scrutiny Group is responsible for approving the work
programmes of the Scrutiny Committees.

6 Implications (including financial implications)

6.2 Resources and Financial

6.2.1 There are no immediate financial implications arising from the proposals.

6.3 Legal

6.3.1 Overview and Scrutiny operates within the provisions as set out in the Local Government Act
2000, the Health and Social Care Act 2001 and the Local Government and Public Involvement in
Health Act 2007. It has had specific powers relating to health services since 2001 and the crime
and disorder since 2006.

6.3.2 Assetoutin Part 7, paragraph 7.1.3 of the constitution “The Overview and Scrutiny function
will develop a work plan as well as supporting policy development, providing pre-decision
scrutiny where appropriate, holding decision-makers to account and exercising the formal call-
in of executive decisions to review any concerns about the making of the decision.”

6.3.3 Part 7.2 of the Overview and Scrutiny procedure rules states:

1.2 the Overview and Scrutiny Committees will consult with other parts of the Council as

appropriate, including the Cabinet, on the preparation of any work programme.

Page 12



1.3 The Overview and Scrutiny Committees will take into account any views expressed
following consultation under Rule 1.2 above in drawing up any work programme. They should
take into account the resources, both Officer and financial, available to support its proposals.

6.4 Risk

6.4.1 To comply with the requirements of the Council’s Constitution, the work programmes of the
three Scrutiny Committees must be formally approved by the Overview and Scrutiny
Coordinating Scrutiny Group.

6.4.2 Scrutiny is essential to good governance and enables the voice and concerns of residents and
communities to be heard and provides challenge and accountability.

6.5 Consultation

6.5.1 Various options for work programming were considered by the Overview and Scrutiny
Coordinating Group at its meeting on 17 June 2021 and each Scrutiny Committee was informed
of the preferred option.

6.5.2 The agreed work programming process includes the opportunity for non-Executives, Cabinet,
the public and officers to be involved in the Work Programme process.

6.5.3 At the inaugural meetings of each Scrutiny Committees, a short-term work programme was
considered and drafted for consideration of the Overview and Scrutiny Coordinating Group.
Each Scrutiny Committee has a lead Executive Director assigned to it and they provided
information and assistance to inform the short-term work programme. The Executive Director
consulted the relevant Assistant Directors on the proposed Scrutiny topics in terms of timings
and the proposed focus of the reviews. All comments received have been included within the
work programmes. When the short-term work programmes are approved, Cabinet Members
will receive a copy. Cabinet Members will be further involved in the work programming
process for Overview and Scrutiny by being invited to attend the work programming events and
inform non-Executives of their priorities for the year. This could then inform any pre-decision
scrutiny items and future scrutiny reviews.

6.6 Consideration by Overview and Scrutiny

6.6.1 The Scrutiny Committees developed short-term Work Programme 2021/2022 which have been
approved by the Overview and Scrutiny Coordinating Group.

6.7 Climate Impact

6.7.1 There are no immediate climate impact implications arising from the proposals.

Page 13



6.8 Community Impact

6.8.1 Scrutiny work will need to assess the implications of any recommendations made, including
equalities and community cohesion implications.

7 Background Papers

Report to the Overview and Scrutiny Coordinating Group — 17 June 2021 and 21 July 2021
Report to the Place Scrutiny Committee - 22 June 2021

Report to the Corporate Scrutiny Committee - 6 July 2021

Report to the People Scrutiny Committee - 20 July 2021

Page 14



Appendix A

Proposed list of groups and organisations to contact for suggestions for future scrutiny review, work
and activity

Parish Councils

Community Groups

Voluntary Groups

Community Forums

Residents Associations

Communications Team to put information out on twitter/face book etc
Press release from the three Chairs of the Scrutiny Committees
Paper copy of the questionnaire in the receptions of the area offices

Draft email to various groups and organisations

Dear all,

West Northamptonshire Council

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programmes — Suggestions for Review

West Northamptonshire Council's Overview and Scrutiny Committees are asking for people to
submit their ideas about what the Committees should investigate over the next twelve months.
The Council has three Overview and Scrutiny Committees: Corporate Scrutiny Committee which
scrutinises strategic priorities, the budget and customer services; People Scrutiny Committee
which scrutinises social care, health and wellbeing, education, housing and communities; and
Place Scrutiny Committee which scrutinises the environment, transport and highways, the local
economy and community safety. The Committees can look into any issue affecting residents or
the area of West Northamptonshire, and ideas do not need to be related to Council services.

Overview and Scrutiny Councillors welcome and encourage members of the public who live or
work in the West Northamptonshire to get involved in Scrutiny. To take part : click here ,

visit https://www.surveymonkey.co.uk/r/’WNCscrutiny or email us by 5pm on Monday 27
September 2021.

Any topics that the Committees decide to include in their work programmes might be subject to
an investigation, called a ‘scrutiny review’. The outcome of any review will be contained in a final
report with recommendations for the appropriate organisation(s).

The outcome of any review will be contained in a final report with recommendations for the
appropriate organisation(s).

Issues that Overview and Scrutiny within West Northamptonshire have previously looked
include:

= Broadband
* Health provisions in relation to Section 106 Agreement Page 15


https://www.surveymonkey.co.uk/r/WNCscrutiny
https://www.surveymonkey.co.uk/r/WNCscrutiny
mailto:democraticservices@westnorthants.gov.uk

= Transport in relation to Section 106 Agreement
= Western Power

= The external perception of delegated authority to refuse planning
permission

= Protecting Daventry’s vision

= The Council’s response to Covid-19

= Food Poverty

= Gangs and Knife Crime
= Homelessness

= Development and delivery of the Council budget
= Children’s social worker recruitment and retention
= Operation of highway services

Suggestions for review must meet the following criteria:

o Affect a group or community of people (Scrutiny will not usually look at individual service
complaints)

« Relate to a service, event or issue in which the Council has a significant stake

e Not be an issue which Overview and Scrutiny has considered during the last 12 months.
However, West Northamptonshire Council was newly formed on 1 April 2021 therefore,
for the inaugural Work Programmes this does not apply

e Not be a planning issue or other matter dealt with by another Council Committee, except
where the issue relates to a process.

Overview and Scrutiny supports the Council’s priorities and underpinning commitments and a
lot of scrutiny work is developed around these priorities. The work of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee and its Task and Finish Groups have no decision making powers but make
recommendations for consideration by Cabinet or full Council. Their work means that they:-

o Contribute to policy development and help develop major plans and strategies for
Northampton

« Hold the Cabinet to account for its decisions

o Examine matters of wider public interest

e Conduct reviews of public bodies that are external to the Council
e Review services of the Council

e Ensure the efficiency and effectiveness of the Council

e Carry out joint work with partners during the same review process

If you have anyqueries or need any help, please contact Democratic Services
democraticservices.westnorthant.gov.uk.

We very much look forward to receiving your suggestions for topics for the Scrutiny Committees
to consider including within their Work Programmes.

We can confirm that you will be notified of what the Work Programmes consist of when they are
finalised.

Yours sincerely Page 16


democraticservices.westnorthant.gov.uk

Councillor Dermot Bambridge Councillor Rosie Herring Councillor Danielle Stone
Chair, Place Scrutiny Committee  Chair, People Scrutiny Committee  Chair, Corporate Scrutiny
Committee

Draft online questionnaire

Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

Please submit your ideas about what the Committee should investigate over the next twelve months.

West Northamptonshire Council has three Overview and Scrutiny Committees: Corporate Scrutiny Committee which scrutinises
strategic priorities, the budget and customer services; People Scrutiny Committee which scrutinises social care, health and
wellbeing, education, housing and communities; and Place Scrutiny Committee which scrutinises the environment, transport and
highways, the local economy and community safety.

The Committees can look into any issue affecting residents or the area of West Northamptonshire Council area, and ideas do
not need to be related to Council services.

Overview and Scrutiny cannot help in the following areas:

- Individual complaints about specific issues. These should be taken up through West Northamptonshire Council's Customer
Care Procedure.

- Proper accounting for money of the Council - this is the responsibility of the Audit Committee

- The conduct or behaviour of a councillor or officer - this is the responsibility of the Standards Committee.

For information on any of these, contact 0300 88060.

It cannot be guaranteed that items raised in this way will actually be considered by Overview and Scrutiny.

Any issues that the Commitiee decides to look into will be investigated. The outcome of any Review will be contained in a final
report with recommendations for the appropriate organisation(s).

Page 17



1. 1 would like the Committee to look at the following issue:

2. Please give us your personal details so that we can communicate with you.

Name: ‘ ‘

Company:

Address 1:

Address 2: ‘ ‘

City/Town: ‘

Postal Code:

Email Address:

Phone Number: ‘

Page 18



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Work Programming Consultation Process

